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1. e act for Advocate Sithembiso Lawrence Mrwebi on whose instructions
we are addressing this letter to you.

2. Receive under cover hereof our client's written response to your letter of

04 Aprll 2018, enclosing the report of the Pane! Chaired by Justice Y.
Mokgoro.

3. Having noted that your letter under reply was copied to the Minister of
Justice and Correctional Services, Advocate T.M Masutha, we have aiso
copled this letter (and our client's written submissions atiached hereto} to
the Honourable Minister Masutha.

4.  We trus! that this lefter adequately responds to your letter under reply.
However, should you requlre to be furnished with any further information
to assist in your consideration of the matter, both our client and ourssives
stand ready to cooperate with your Office.
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Advocate Lawrence Mrwebi

Special Director of Pubiic Prosecutions
National Prosecuting Authority of South
Africa

Private Bag X 752

Pretoria
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18 April 2019

The Honourable President
Republic of South Africa
Union Buildings

Pretoria

Dear Honourable President

SUBMISSIONS BY ADVOCATE LAWRENCE MRWEBI — REPORT OF
ENQUIRY IN TERMS OF SECTION 12(6) OF THE NPA ACT 32 OF 1908

| herewith respond to your invitation to make any written submissions that | may
have to your offices, as per your letter of 4 April 2019,

| do not intend to befabour the point, but wish ¢ express my most sincerest and
hard-felt disappoiniment st the outcome of the Mokgore Enquiry and the
recommendations that were made to yourself in regard to my continuing to hold
the position that | currently do.

In my view and that of my legal team the Panel failed to meaningfully consider
and deal with the avidence that was submitted during the actual hearing portion
of the enquiry. | personally gave evidence, much of which was not challenged at
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all by the evidence leaders, yet this fact does not appear to have been
appreciated and incorporated into the report of the Mokgoro Enquiiry.

It would further appear that the Mokgoro Enguiry also, and without any evidence
in this regard, accepted the narrative that had been played out by the Democratic
Alliance and other parties that my actions in declding te provisicnally withdraw the
fraud charges as against General Mdluli was part of, it would appear, a larger
conspiracy and was done with the intent to benefit General Mdiuli and as the
narrative goes, to benefit the then President Zuma as well.

There was simply not one word of evidence piaced before the Panei that supports
this narrative. 1 would appear that if something is said in the press or in the
public a sufficient number of times, then it simply becomes the truth
notwithstanding the denial thereof by myself and the fact that not one other
person who gave evidence had any proof to suppoit this conjecture that was
ievelled against me.

Perhaps the cisarest indication that what | did at the time (provisional withdrawa!
of the charges against Richard Mdltuli} was not incorrect, is the fact that to this
dats, a good 8 yeers later, General Mdlull has not been presecutsd in respect of
the crimes that | provisionally withdrew the charges against him. Tc this date, the
documentation that i believed in 2011 to be required in order to successfully
prosecute General Mdiuli has rot bsen relsased In & fashion that it becomes
admissible in a Court of law and no prosecution has ensued. | the Intsrvening
period, | spent a considerable amount of time off work, either on special leave or
suspension, and therefore if there was evidence to pursue the Mdiuli charges,
this could have bsen done during my absence from office. There is now a new
National Director of Public Prosecutions and even she hae not reinstated those
charges. To, on the basis of mere conjecture and unsubsizntiated narrative, end
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my career with the NPA, is simply with the greatest of respect to the Panel and to
yourself untenable and not correct.

In this regard, | can actually do no better than to refer the Honourabie President
and his advisers to the Heads of Argument that were filed on my behalf before
the Panrel by the advocates representing me. It would appear that the Panel did
not take into account any of the submissions and egrguments that were raised in
the Heads of Argument. | attach such Heads of Argument hersto as Annexure
“LSM1" and request the Honcurable President ang his advisers to consider
same because thersin are set out the full arguments and basis upon which |
submit today as it was submitted then, that thers is simply no basis for a
recommendation that | should be removed from my position.

On this point | ask the Honourable President to consider carefully the chilling
effect, on the body of prosecutors in the country generally and on prosecutorial
independence in particular, of a removal of a prosecutor from office primarily
because such prosecutor applied their minds to facts that were placed before
them at the time, and arrived at a judicious conclusion that such facts were
inadequate o press ahead with presecution. If this is done, then an unforiunate
precedent may be set that by mere conjecture a prosecuter can te removed from
office, which, | respectfully submit, will not serve the public interest or the effort to
fight crime, especially organisad crime, in the country.

As should be known to you, | have now passed the age of 60 having been served
the country as a Prosecutor for my entire professional working life. My last
reguest to your good ssif is that shouid my final submissions stiil not result thersin
that the President is prepared to keep me in my position and that the President
supports the recommendation of the Panei to remove me from my position, that |
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then be given an opportunity to retire from my employment with the National
Prosecuting Authority, since | have already reached normal and voluntary
retirement age, and that the Honourable President allow me the time to wrap up
my involvement at the NFA solely for the purposes of officlally retiring from the
organisation. In that case the Honourable president will determine the period for
my final wrapping up.

10.  In conclusion, { sincerely trust that the Honourable President will consider my
submisslons favourably. However, If this is not the case, then | submit thet the
country will not suffer any prejudice as a result of me being allowed to retire from
the NPA without the indignity of being removed from office.

1. | await your response in this regard.

Yours faithfully

L § MRWEBI
SPECIAL DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC PROSECUTIONS



SUBMISSIONS ON BEHALF OF SITHENBISO LAWRENGE MRWEE!

A: INTRODUCTION:

1. In terme ofthetamofrcforonceaetoutlnmswemmontanzeue
No: 42020 dated o November 2018, the enquiry ls tesked fo
determine the finess of Advocate Sithemblso Lawrence Mrwebi fo
hold office as a prosecutor in the prosecutorial services, In particular,
in the capaclty as Speclal Director of Public Prosscutions with
reference to, and at the discretion of the chalrpersons of the enquiry,

but not limited to, matters ralsed in or arising from the following
Casss:

1.4 JIBA and Another v. General Counssl of the Bar of South
Africa [2018] 3 ALL 8A 822 (SCA);

1.2 Freedom under Law v, National Director of Pubfic
Prosecutions & others 2018 (1) SACR 438 (GP):

1.3 General Councll of the Bar of South Africa v, Jiba and
others 2017 (2) 8A 122 (GP);

14 Freedom Under Law v, National Direcior of Pubiic
Pragecutions and Others [2014] (1) BA 254 (GNP); and
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1.6 National Director of Public Prosscutions and Others v,
Freedom Under Law 2014 (4) SA 208 (SCA), In 80 far gs it
relatee, directly or indirectly to the conduct of Adv, Mrwebi,
and relating to his fitness and propristy 1o hold office and
with due regerd to all other relevant information, including
but not limited to matters relating to Richard Mdlul

Further, the question Is whether in fulfiling his responsibilities as
Speclai Director of Public Prosecutions, Adv. Mrweb!:

2.1 Complied with the Constitution, the National Prosecuting
Authority Act and any other relevant laws In his posiiion as
& senior Jeader in the Natlonal Prosecuting Authorfty and
l& it and proper to hold his position end be &8 member of
the prosecution service:

22 Properly exercised his discretion In relation to:

221 instituting  and conducting  criminal
proceedings on behalf of the State:
222 Camying out the necessary funciions

incidental to inatituting and conducting such
crimine! proceedings; and

223 Dlscontinuing criminal proceedings.
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23 Duly respected court processes and proceedings before
the Courts as required by the applicabie prescripts and as
& Speclal Direcior of Public Prosecutions In the National

Prosecuiing Authorkty;

2.4 Exercised his powers and perfommed his duties and
functions In accordance with prosecution policy and policy
directives a3 determined under section 21 of the National
Prosscuting Authority Act:

2.5 Acted at all times without fear, favour or prejudice,

Accordingly, the Issues thet the enquiry are tasked fo enquire into In
determining the finess of Ady, Mrwebl to hold office are the
following:

3.1 Whether, having regard to the aforementioned cases', and
in the Instituting and conducting criminal proceedings on
behalf of the Stats, he compiled with the Constitution, the
Natlonal Prosecuting Authority Act and any other relevant
laws In his position as & senlor leader in the Nationai
Prosecuting Authority;

_ And any oher Information which i In the dicretion o 1 chaiperson relevant
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3.2 Whether, having regard to the aforementioned cases, and
In canying out the necessary functione Incidental to
Instituting end conducling such criminal proceedings, he
complled with the Constitution, the National Prosecuting
Authority Act enc any other relevant laws in his position as
& ssnior leader in the National Prosecuting Authority;

RELEVANCE OF EVIDENCE

4.1 K ie submitted that the amblit of the enquiry has been
specified In the terms of reference. In this regard, we
refer to the paragraphs above. it Is our contention that
the ambit of the enquiry is thus limlted to the cases fhat
are specifically mentioned and we would submit, any
activiles assoclated with such cases gnd the time period
within which such ceses took place.

4.2 R is submitted that it Is simply untenable that the amblt of
the enquiry can be o look at the entire pariod that Ady.
Mwrebi was employed by the National Prosecuting
Authority ("NPA®). As indicated in Adv. Mwrebls
evidence, he has been Invoived with the prosecutorisl
sorvices of this country since he assumad his very first
empioyment and wes one of the firat black people to be
incorporated into the NPA when t was established.
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Further he has only held the position of the Special
Director of Serious Crimes Commercial Unit ("SCCU")
eince November 2011, which In any event Is aiready more
then seven years ago. Prior to that he did not hold the
position of a director, but was the head of the DSD
(Scorplons) In KwaZulu-Natal, We submit that for
purposes of this enquiry any activities prior o November
2011 are not relevant for purposes of this enquiry and
would be extremely unfair if a party, whom Is already In an
unfair manner being exposed at this late stage to a seven
year enquiry, would have to be exposed to even a further
enqulry where matters were dsalt with, settlements and

litigation entered Into and we would submit matters
resolved,

The aforementioned submisslons, we submit, are
supported by the fact that it only becomee the purview of
the President to order a Section 12{8) of the NPA Act
Enquiry In respect of directors and above, since such
indviduals are appointed by way of presidental
appointments through proclamation, Prior to that date
any iesuse sumounding the actions and activities of an
empioyee wouid have to have besn covered by the
Discipfinary Code of the NPA, which wouid have Invoived
the Institution of disciplinery procsedings. Such constitutes
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& completely different process and procedure that has to
be foliowed and we would submit clearly cannot and does
not form part of the ambit of this enquiry. The time period
within which such diecipiinary process could have been
tewiully instituted has also long passed.

4.4 We submit that with respect that & would appear that
ceriain of the witnesses that came forward fo give
evidance considered this enquiry an opportunity to settle
scores with Advocates Mrwebl end Jibe and to throw as
much mud at them as possible in respact of any
concelvable impression that such witness hed of sither
Adv. Mrwebl or Adv. Jlba acling In a manner that did not
find their approval. Much of such avidence was in any
case hearsay and based upon what they had heard from

other sources.

STANDARD OF ENQUIRY

5.1 In the written submlssions submitted to the snguiry by
Freedom Under Law ("FUL") the following statement io
mada:-

“In any event. the Inquiry should apply higher
standerds of conduct to Me Jibe and Mr Mrweb!
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than those applied by the GCB and the Courls in
reletion to their polential striking off from the roll
of Advocates.  This is becsuse the inquiry’s
mandate s not fo defermine whether Ms Jiba
and Mr Mrwebi are fif and proper persons to
practice as advocates, but rather to enquire into
mn-m“tohoﬂthepubllcomesofbepuw
NDPP and the Special Director of Pubiic

Prosecutions respectively.”

8.2 We submit that this test which has been formulated by
FUL Is completely incormect. We submit that the enquiry
into whether the individuals are fit and proper persons to
holdtheofﬂoalnaeoordaneawlththeActIsaeomplotely
different test, as has already been verbalized by the panal
constituting the enquiry.  Although the words *#t and
proper” are used in relation to the NPA Act, we submit that
such fit and proper Is different to the enquiry as to whether
@ person Is fit and proper to be an admitted Advocate or
Attomey. We would submit that such & test is of & more
general nature than the very specific test that Is provided
for in the admission of the aforementioned legal
practitioners,

FUL Submisslons, per. 82, p 10
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in fact we submit that unless groes Incompetences,
imegularities or non-compliance with the dutles and
obiigations of Adv. Mrwebi Is shown then he should be
aoeeptadtobaaﬂtandpmperpemn. Any other
approach would result In such officials becoming
paralyzed In their functioning es prosscutors, looking
fearfully over the shouklers as to when they might have fo
explain thelr actions In an enquiry such as this. Difference
of opinlon, the slightest human error or any controversial
declsion would result In such officlals being exposed to
sanctions. That most cerialnly cannot be the test io be
applied to the relevant officials In the NPA.

8. THE EVIDENCE AND THE NARRATIVE

8.1

8.2

It e submitted that what the enquiry respactfully has to do
's to separats the eclual evidencs that has baen provided

fo the enquiry from the namative, that | shell define
hereunder, from one another,

The narrative, with respect, clouds and obfuscates the real
snquiry here, namely that Advocates Jiba and Mrwebl, in
coliusion and In concert, acted with mela fide Intent to
pratsct Lisutenent General Mdlull from being prosecutad,
&nc thet such mela fide actions Is what reelly constitutes
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the complaint about the actions of Ady, Mrwebl. Thie
namative, which has had much play in the press and,
which press reporis and versions has craeted, ws’

respectiully submit, a false opinion and public perception
a8 to the activiles and intentions of Adv. Mrwebi,

The suggestion is that Adv. Mrwebi in order to protect
Lieutenant General Mdiull and tt would appear, as per the
narrative, as a favour to the then President Zuma, with the
assistance of Adv., Jiba, then the Acting National Director
of Public Prosecutions, deilberately and In a nefarious
manner set about withdrawing criminal charges against
Lisutenant General Mdiull with the sole objeciive being the
achisvement of this Irregular reault.

We submit that should this narrative be removed from the
consideration of events, then all that Is ieft s an action by
Adv. Mrwebl, which some parles have criticlzed and
disagread with, whilst other partles seem to support, that
In ltseif would not Justify any Interference or finding by the
enquiry as against Adv. Mrwebl, We shall dsal further with
this aspect hereunder.

The narrative appears to have ite origine; or is mentioned
for the firet time chronoiogically by Adv. Breytenbach, who
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In evidence when challenged on what basis did she Infer
that there was a mela fide intent with the withdrawai of the
charges, was that she Just feit and knew that was the
shustion. In her evidence she stated that:-

“Adv. Rip: Used words such &s nefarlous, there
were appoiniments for ulterior motives,
Inference would be run, efc. ete. Am f correct,
Just help me if | em wrong, thet you had the
Impression that the Mdiull prosecution woulkd
never happen and that someone somewhere
muldenmmnwouldndhappen?

Adv. Breytenbach: Well, | had a fear that, that
was going fo happen. | had, 1 dikd not have &
vlswﬂrat,ﬂ:atlswhatwouldhappen,l
suspacied that that ls what /s being attempted,
ﬁwaaquﬂadetennkndfhatﬂrsoppommuld
happen. But there was a cass o be answersd
and thet Mr Mdlull would answer the case, If he
was convictsd so be K, ¥ ke was acquitied, so
be It
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Adv. Rip: Sc:lheaapactmatwamwum
with Is, why did you have this feeling? Because
we do not know where that fesling comes from.

Adv. Breytenbach: Mr Rip, | have been @
prossculor for 26 years, I am not particuiarly
Mbutﬂamalaonotparﬂouledydupld. You
cnncaﬂftagutfoeﬂng,youoanmﬁﬂewlmﬂng
malmdacape.youncallﬂ,obaandngwhatls
happenmgmundyouandnotboobﬂvbuato#.
All of those things. So | cannot say fo you one
thing, and that is the reason. A varfaly of things
were happening in the NPA, & veristy of things
were happening elsewhers, It all bullt up to this
feeling, and svents have borne it oul. | am sure
you will agres, Mdiulf hes not been
presscuted,™

No spscific evidence was submitted by Adv. Breytenbech
in this regard and in support of her “gut feeling”

8.8 When Adv, Femeira wes under cress-axamination and the
Issue of the ulterior motive for the provisional withdrawai of
the charges was raised with him, Adv. Ferrelre statad that

Treneoript of Breytenbash Evidanoe, pp 124 - 128, 28 January 2019
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there was no direct evidence to support their conclusion
that the charges were being withdrawn for uleror
Purposes and that is why It was not ralsed in the
memorandum that he drew with Adv. Breytenbach and
which was submitied In April 2012 to Adv. Jiba for her
consideration and the possible review of the decision
made by Adv. Mrweb! fo provisionally withdraw the

charges.

Mr Wille Hofmeyer eizo made mention of the narrative,
but did not provide any evidence to support the
speculation that the narrative constitiutes,

Insofar as the lssue of what the public opinion s about the
NPA and whether or not It has falth and trust In the NPA 1o
continue tts work, &t Is submitted that this cannot be a
basls upon which the snquiry can find that Adv. Mrwebi Is
not a fit and proper person,

The first point of departure has to be that whilst Adv.
Mrwebi was In his various positions at the NPA there weare
numerous National Direciors of Public Prosecution
("NDPP"), whom had cversil controi over the organization
and whom wera thamselves [nvolvad in numerous court

cases and negative findings egainst themsaives resuiting
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In the undermining of the NPA. It would appear that much
of the bad press and publicity that surrounded the NPA
came about as a result of the fact that there were simply
oo many different ieaders over g short period of time,
whom wers invoived whh the adminisiration or mal-
administration of the organtzation. it would appsar that
the NPA had become a hot bed for incriminations and
back-stabbing between the various senior management
officials. We submit that this is probably due largely to
the continued change of leadership and the Insecurity that
it would have created amongst the top management within
the organization.

€.10 To then place the blame for & public perception of an
organization that [a not to be trusted on the shoulders of
Adv, Miwebi and to say that he must be the “falf guy” for
the entire organization and the perception that the
organization has in the public le not ohly legally untenable,
but morally repugnant.

8.11 What cannot be disputed fs that on 9 December 2011
thers was & definitive agresment betwean three of the key
players in this matter. Ady. Breytenbach, Adv. Mzinyathi
and Adv. Mrwebl agread on that date that there would bs
& provisional withdrawal of the chargee against General
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Mdlufl, thet the matter would be Investigated further under
the guidance of Adv. Breytenbach and that the matter
would be referred to the Inspector Genera! for essistance
In regard to decumente.

8.12 Whatever the motivetton for coming to such an agreament
[t ls clear that as at © December 2011 there s no
“withdrawal® of the fraud and corruption charges as
égainst General Mdlull. It will clearly be a provislonal
withdrawal, as the evidence was before the enquiry. A
withdrawal of a matter before & plea has bsen made Ia In
any event in terms of Saection 8(1) of the Act a provisional
withdrawal that can be instituted again at any later stage.
There was accordingly no hamm done by the provisional
withdrawal of the charges on 14 December 2011, as had
been agreed to on @ December 2011,

6.13 The evidence sesms fo be uncontroverted ss stated by
Adv. Mrwebi that the Investigations are done by the Police
who are primarly responsible for such further
Investigations and the finding of further evidence, It Is not
the prosscutors role to Investigate although they can glve
guidance In the correct clrcumstences,
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6.14 The entire debate about whether or not Adv. Mrwebl was
correct in his viewpoint that the evidence In the docket
was In his view not suMicient o Justify the continuation of
the prosecution at that time, without further invastigation,
Is with respect Imelevant. The reeson that wa maeke this
submission s that should every prosecutor or for thet
matler any legal representative, be teken 1o tesk in the
manner in which Adv. Mrwebl has bsen In this enquiry,
because other legal representatives do not agree with the
approach adopted, It would result [ chaos and 2
completely paralyzed legal system,

8.13 As en example, should an advocats give an opinion to a
client that another edvocate does not agres with, then
such advocate could be sccused of glving an opinion that
was Incorrect and then have his decision ventilated to ses
if he wag comect In coming to the conclusion that he did.
If all isgal lssues were as simple as thers belng & clear
and unequivocal rfght or wrong In every given
circumetances, then there would no nesd for a lagal
system, nor legal representatives and the Court would be
superfiuous. The fact that all of this Is avallable and that
In every matter there Is a difference of opinion as fo what
Is the corract interpratation of the iagal principies end/or
facts shows that, except In the clegrest cases where thers
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can be no doubt and & can unequivocelly be found that a
legal representative or In this Instance, Adv. Mrwebl was
acting with mallclous aforethought 1o achieve an nefarious
purpose, the fact that others might not agres with your
sentiments cannot ever constitute the basis upon which a
pereon can be found not to be fit and proper to occupy
their position,

8.16 In fact all of the witnesses and In particular, Adv.
Breytenbach and Ferrelra conceded that prosacutors had
different opinions on matters. It can only be said that Adv,
Mrwebi's decislon to provisionally withdraw the charges at
that time is blameworthy if the evidence shows

unequivocally that it was done In a mala fide manner with

ulterior purposes.

6.17 The basis upon which Adv. Mrwebl befieved that there
were no prospects of a succeasful prosacution at the time
that he made his decision is also justifiable and
reasonable in the circumstances. It was stated by some
of the witnessss that It was clear that General Mdiul was
gulity of comuption In that he had accepled a loan In terms
of which there seems i have been some gratification.
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6.18 As testified to by Adv. Mrwebi, such a gratification must be
an unauthorized gratification and ths onus of proving that
it was an unauthorizad gratification rested upon the State,
ae the prosscutor. Such onus of proving this aiso was on
the basls of beyond rezsonabie doubt. The simple
situation therefore was that for the State to prove that the
gratification was uneuthorized It had to have the evidence
from the employer to show that on s books the empioyer,
in this instance the Police Intefligence Service, had not
authorized the “gretification” or loan,

8.18 Further the evidence of Adv, Mrwebi, who indicated that
he had studled the content of the docket thoroughly and
which fact was never disputed, was that the transactions
relating to the purchase of the motor vaehicles were
transactions done In the name of front companies, which
are companies used by the Police Inteligence Services (o
hide thelr activities from the general public and we would
imagine criminale. Although it appears that some of these
documents were In the possession of the investigating
officers and In the dockef, it was submitted that the
documents would have o be de-ciessified before they
coukd be used In a public forum, such as a criminal frial. I
not, then everyone could bacome ewars of what the
names were of the front companies empioyed by the



Page 18

Police Intelligence Services, which couid expose
numerous of the Intelligence Services activities.

8.20 Cartainly In the case of whethsr or not General Mdiull had
been suthorized or not io recelve the gratification, such
documentation had to come directly from the Intelligence
Services to prove the fact. Without such documentation
and should General Mdiull simply not give any evidencs,
then there would be no proof of an unauthorized
gratification.

8.21 The further evidence was that when the matter was
submitted to tral again in July 2015, the prosacutor still did
not have the necessary de-classified documentation In
order to continue with the tal and when 2 further
postponement was sought, the Magistrate Involved struck
the matter from the roll, In fact, the documentation hes io
date not been de-classified and thers was evidence that
the Parllamentary Stending Committee in thie regard hes
been approached In an attempt to force the National
Commissioner of Police 1o de-classify the dosumentation
80 that the prosscution of General Mdiull could
successfully continue.  If there was any Interference or
bad faith In the prosecution of General Mdlull, such would
appear o lle within the Pollce forces themselves, in thelr
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fallure to properly get the necessary admissible evidence

avallable to place before the Court.

There was a suggeetion that Adv. Mrwebl had
recommended the Inetitution of disciplinary procsss
against Adv. Breytenbach In order to remove Adv.
Breytenbach frommoneanaandsoaltoproventherl_'mm

continuing with the prosecution of the General Mdiuk
matter,

There are, however, 5 number of flawe with this further
attempted Indictment of Adv. Mrwebl, The first of these ls
that Adv. Mzinyathi, the Director and direct supervieor of
Adv, Breytenbach had referred a complaint that he had
recelved sometime previous to the Mdiull Incident
commencing and/or Adv. Mrwebl essuming his role as
Speclal Diracior, to Adv. Mrwebi for his comments on the

compleint and what steps could possibly be taken against
Adv. Breytenbach.

Adv. Mrwebl after & consideration of the representations
and complaint filed & report In terms of which he stated
that there appeared to be evidence of wrongdoing and that
it justified further investigation and the taking of necessary:
steps agsinst Adv. Breytenbach. Such investigetion then
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tock place by the Intemal Ethics Deperiment of the NPA
end t was them who then Inetituted the discipiinary
proceedings agalnat Adv. Breytsnbach, Adv. Nirwebs was
not responsible for the Institution of such dleciplinary
process &nd merely had indlcated that there was
something to investigate.

6.26 Further the suggestion or namative that this was done in
order to ramove Ady. Breytenbach from the scene holds
no water, eince the prosacution of General Mdiull Ws
under the control of Adv. Smith and Ferreira, not Adv.
Breytenbach, Adv. Breytenbach’s role had simply been
that she had intervened when hearing that there had been
& decision by Adv. Mrwebl to provisionally withdraw the
metier ieeding to the 8 December 2011 meeting. She
was then instructed to follow up with the Inspscior General
88 o the documentation. The fact that later Adv,
Breytenbach was suspsnded did not stop the prosecutors
who wers allocsted fo the case and who remained
aliocated to the case at the ime of Adv. Breytenbach's
suspension to continue with thelr own work and to follow

Up on the police Investigations that were meant fo
continue at the time,
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8.26 Further for thle namative to have any substance, Adv.
Mzinyathl must have been part of the “conspiracy” to stop
the presacution of General Mdiull, which when one
considers the evidence and his opposition to ths
withdrawal of the chargas provislonalty and his
involvement In organtzing the meeting of 8@ Dacember
2011 and his actions in this regard, s simply untenabile.

8.27 Further In an affidavit eupplied by one Jayashree
Govender, 2 legal adviser In the office of the Inspecior
General of Intelligence, which affidavit was made on 21
February 2018, Ms Govender disputes certaln of the

evidence of Adv. Mrwebl. She does, however, state the
following:-

“Further, | vehemently deny that | had indicated
that the legisiation governing the OIGI was in the
process of being amended to exclude the
Investigations. This would be anomalist as by
s very nature the mandats of the Inspscior
General is fo monlior the activities of the
Intefiigence Services through nvestigations,
Thisiaospedalljmammotohedlachargeof
the complaints mandate,

Affidavit, par.-a. p2
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8.28. R is submitted that this paragraph, in fect confirms the
evidence of Adv. Miwebl. Adv. Mrwebl said that the
inspector General had the authorlty fo Investigate
compiaints egainst members of the Intefligence
community, of whom General Mdiull was one, Adv.
Mrwebl never suggested that, and denled that the
Inepector General was Supposed to do & criminal
Investigation. A criminal Investigation hed to be done by
the South African Police Services, A compiaint, howaver,
could be registered by any person, including an
Investigating Officer or a complainant In & criminal matter
as fo the activiies of @ member of the Intelligence
Services In regard to thelr activities and use of monies
flowing from the Inteliigence Services, [t {8 submitied that
an investigation into such a complaint by the Inepector
General was and ls mandatad by the relevant leglsiation
&3 confirmed by the paragraph quoted above. The issue
would be, how does one obtain the evidence that flows
from such an Intemnal Investigation, flowing from &
complaint egalnet a member of the Intelligence
community.  This le where the de-classification of
documentation becomes germana to the Issue,
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We aleso refer to the letter of 31 May 2012 from the
Attomey Szyndralewicz addressed to Ady. Jiba and Adv.
Mrwebl. In such lettar, the attomey acting on behalf of six
named policeman refers to previous reprasentations made
fo Adv. Mrwebl and then goes on to etgte thet:-

"Further to aforementionsd, X has become
&pparent that the investigations by members of
the SAPS has not stopped, but has In feot
Intensifled.”

This documentation and lstter are further ciear support for
the fact that the actions of Adv, Mrwebi In provisionally
withdrewing the charges and ordering that further
Investigation into the matier be done specifically in regard
to documentation In the intelligence community had not
resulted in any "escape clause” for General Mdlull. | was
clear that such further investigations were continuing, that
the Inspector General had been approached In respact of
classified documentation and that as far as the six
policeman referred to In the representations and the lefter
by the attomey of 31 May 2012, ik was creating the riek of
@ security breach and the leak of Information that would
smbarrase South Africa and the sacurity community. We
submit that such silegations and siatements ere not
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Supportive of the namative that Adv. Mrwebl was
attempting to prevent Genersl Mdlull from being
investigeted, since the complaint to Adv. Mrwebl and his at
that ime ecting Netional Director of Prosecutions Adv.
Jiba wes that notwithstanding the representations In
February, Adv. Mrwsb! had not stopped the investigations,
which were still going on unabated,

B: SUMMARY OF SOME OF THE OTHER EVIDENCE ADDUCED IN THE
ENQUIRY

PrSllas Ramalte:

7 The only relevant evidence adduced by Dr Ramaite conceming the
terms of reference was that:

7.1 Public interests play = role In the instituting of crimina
proceedings;

7.2 Where there 2 no good cese ggainst an accused person
and there ls a huge public interest, it is not the
responeiblity of members of the National Prosecuting
Authority to determine the cradiblilty of the witnesses and
that the matter ought to be placed on the roll for the court
to make a declsion;
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7.3 At the time when Adv. Mrwebl took a decision to withdraw
the fraud and corruption charges against Richard Mdlull,
the meaning of “iIn coneuitation with” as contemnplated In
ssotion 24 (3} of the Natlonal Prosecuting Authority Act
was well known.

7.4 On 24 July 2018 a consultation was held for purposes of
Inltiating the review application referred to above®

Agv Chiris Jordaary:

8. He founded and was the first head of the Special Commerclal Crimes
Unit and retired in 2011,

g. During his tenure as the Speclal Director of Public Prosecutions,
there was no Interference from the Director of Public Prosecutions
(the DPP”);

10. The DPP nelther Interfered in hie declsion o prosecuts or declined 1o
prosscute,

Adv. Femelre:

® Paga ai-mfo
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When Adv. Mrwebl took a decision to withdraw the fraud and
corrupion charges, there was at least a prima facle case even
though there was very littls poiice Investigation that wae requined:

When Adv. Mrweb! withdrew the charges, the SCCU reported to the
DPP and therefore Adv. Mrwebi was not authorized to recelve and
deal with the representztion recelved from Mdlull's stiorneys,

Under cross examination, Adv. Ferrelra conceded thet:

13.1 Authorization document from Crime Inteligence for the
purchase of the two BMannnotlnmododcotandm
If it was In the docket, it would have been declassified first:

13.2 Adv. Mrwebi sought and obtained their input before
making his decision o withdraw the charges;

13.3 Proseoutore hold different views all the time and thers is
no adverse inference to be drawn therefrom;

13.4 Although he had initally stated in his affidavit that Adv
Mrwebl did not consider the merits of the cass when
withdrawing the charges, he eveniuality conceded but
explained that hls view was based on the fact that Adv.
Mrwebl did not deat spacifically with the merits of the cage
in his consultative note;
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13.8 Thers I8 no svidence that Adv. Mrwebl withdrew the
charges for ulterlor motive;

13.8 Although there was further investigation on other
allsgations, there s no reason why the charges that were
withdrawn In 2011 could not be reinstated up fo now,

13.7 There are other senior prosecutors who as [ate as 2014
could not express a view In regard to whether a prims
fecie case existed ggainst Mdlul on the fraud and
cofruption oharges;

14. Adv. Macadam's evidence related o the period when he was dealing
with the foreign bribery cases. It [ submitted that Adv. Macadam's
evidencs essentlally came down to what he perceived as a grievance
about the fact that he was removed from controlling such foreign
bribery cases during 2014 and that in his view such removal wes
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uncalied for and would lead 1 an embarrassment of South Africa at
the International Working Group dealing with such matters.

The evidence of Adv. Mrweb! in this regard was eseentially thet the
reporting to the Imemational Working Group wae a ministerial
function which collectad reports from the various depariments
dealing with foreign bribery cases to dellver a report on behalf of
South Africa, which report required ministerial approval before such
reports were done.

it s submitted that the evidence by Adv, Mrwebl iz supported by the
independent organization’'s report that as at 2018 South Africa was
still a functional and accepted member of the Working Group and
that South Africa’s position within the organization had not becoms
an embarrassment or led to any of the potental problems that Ady.
Macadam speculated would be the result of his removai.

in fact, what the Independent feport showed was that the prosecution
and succassful conclusion of dealing with foreign bribery cases wes
a world-wide problem where many recognized first world countries
were doing no better than South Africa was, it Is submitted to the
énquiry that the Involvement of Adv. Mrwebl in this part of his duties
could not in any manner be seen as nat making him a fit and proper
pereon to continue with his poattion ea a Special Direcior. In fact,
the evidence of Adv., Mrwebl was that if {t were not for the
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abscondment of an accused shortly before the matter went to trial,
South Africa's first bribery case would have been already prosscuted.
There wae also evidence deliversd by Adv. Mrwebl that there hed
been good progress mada in the investigations on a number of these
matters and that In & further matter charges had aireedy baen
formulated and ons could expact an imminent prosecution fo flow

therefrom.

Colonel Roslofse’s evidencs was essentlally the foliowing:-

18.

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

That there was g prima facle cass agalnst Mdlull when the
charges were withdrawn In December 2011:

That he was not consulted (as It was the practica} when
the charges were withdrawn;

That the reason why the maiter e taking too iong to be

placed on the wil was a discovery of further charges
against Mdhull; and

That the consequences of the matter being difficult to
resoive Is ascribable 1o the conduct of Mrwsbi when he
withdrew the charges In 2011,

Under cross exemination, Roelofee conceded that:
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19.1 As a police officer, he has no power to place a matter on
the rolf as it was & matier within the exclusive discrstion of
the Public Progsecutor:

ie.2 Could not explain why the matter could not be placed on

the roli many years after Mrwebl has been removed from
the matter,

Mr Willle Homever:

20, The assence of Mr Hofmeyer's testimony is that Adv. Mrwebi:

© The phrase “in consultation with” has been well known within
the NPA" and nc reasons exist for Adv. Mrwabl to have
suggested that he misundersiood what &t meant;

o Adv. Mrwebl interfered In the Selebl Investigation or assisted
Seisbi In his application for the pemanent stay of prosecution:

o Adv. Mrwebl unlawfully assisied In the arrest of Adv. Genie
Nel: and

* Thaers wers pending charges egainst Mrweb! for sontravening
section 32 of the NPA Act.
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Under cross examination, Mr Hofmeyer did not dispute that he did

not have facts upon which he based his allegations and that he was
merely drawing inferences.

Further, it wae concedad under crose examination that:

o the aﬂldavlt that Adv, Mrwebl made was deposed ic earller
and subsequently used by Selebl without Mrwebl's consent;

* The charges that were leveiled against Mrwebl for the alleged
contravention of section 32 of the NPA Act were struck off the
roll in terms of section 342 of the Criminal Procedure Act:

@ There was no real basis for the allegations that Mrwebl
asslsted In the “unlawful amrest” of Adv, Gerrie Nel. In fact
the affidavit made by Adv. Mrwebi that was in the docket of
Adv. Gerrle Nel dealt with the nomal process that wae
followsd at the time by the DSO and the eventual opinion
that, In the view of Adv. Mrwebl, Adv. Nel had not followed the
normal processes and that the explanetion by Adv. Nel could
not be eccepted In the circumstances. It wouid appear that
such affidavit was made subsequent to the amast of Adv. Nel

and could not have constituted the basis for Adv, Nel's armest
at the time.
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Ihe Seiebi matfer:

23. It ls submitted that the attempts by, In particular i Hofmeyer to cast
aspersions at Adv. Mrwebi In reletion to the Selebl matter are simply
without any fectual or legel foundation,

24, The affidavit that In some inexciplable and mysterious fashion, which
hed been supplied to a special task taam, had found He way Into en
application by Mr Selsbi io stay his prosscution cannot be the basis
for any finding or fault as against Ady. Mrwebl. In fact, when one
considers the content of the affidavit, It Is simply a recordal of what
had transpired et a meeting during July 2007 and certalnly was not
an affidavit that had been prepared for and with Mr Selebl In mind.

26, The fect that Adv. Mrwebl had given evidence at Mr Selebi's trial was
on the basis that he had been subpoenaed to do so and Ady. Mrwabi
had only given evidence after he had cleared such fact with the
National Director of Public Prosecutors at the time, whom had
indicated to him that It wes & lawfui subpoena and & would be lilegal
and unlawful for Adv. Mrwebl not to obey this subpoena. Adv.
Mrwebl's evidence also was that he had no dealings with Mr Selsbi,
never knew him and only met him when he armived at the trial in
accordance with his subpoena. Such subpoena hed not been
arranged with him previously and It was not done by agreement with
him. 1t was an Independent act that had been genaretad by the legal
represantatives of Mr Saieb! gt the time.
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28, A further fact Is that no one has challenged the correctness of the
affidavit, which 23 we have indicated, was eimply supplled fo a
spaclafly appointed tesk team. There Is no suggestion that Ady,
Mrwebl hed faieifled Information or created a falss document for any
ulterior purpose and It appears that he was simply misused by other
forces that had the Interests of Mr Selebi at heart.  Again, we
felterate that this simply cannot be the basle upon which any
negative finding or inference can b made against Adv. Mrweb| for
purposes of the terms of reference of the present anquiry.

C: APPLICABLE LEGAL PRINCIPLES

27. Section 176(1) of the Constitution esiablishes a single national
prosecuting authority — the National Prosecuting Authority (“the NPA”
or “Prosscuting Authority”) ms determined by the National
Prosacuting Authority Aot 32 of 1908 ("the NPA Act’) conslsting a
National Director of Public Prosscutions ("NDPP") as the head of the
NPA, so appointed by the President, Directors of Public Prosecutions
(DPPs) and prosscutors sa determined by the NPA Act,

28. Section 21(1) of the NPA act requires the NDPP to dstermine
prosecution policy and lssue prosecution directives “In accordancs

with 178 (5) (a) and {b) and any ofher relevant section of the
Constitution”
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The “Prosecuting Authority” established In terms of secilon 17€ of the
Constitution as determined In the NPA Act consists of-

30.1 The Office of the NPA, and

30.2 The offices the prosecuting authority at the High Courts,

The composition of the NPA comprises:
31.1 The NDPP;

91.2 The DNDPPs:

31.3 The DPPs;

314 The DDPPs; and

31.6 The prosecutors.
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D: APPOINTMENT AND POWERS OF SPECIAL DIRECTORS OF PUBLIC
PROECUTORS (“Special Director”),

32, A “special diractor is a DPP appeinted under section 13(1 ¥c) of the
NPA Act which provides that the President, after consultation with the
Minister and the NDPP, may appoint one or more DPPs (also
referred to as Special Directors} to exercise certgin powers, carry out
ceriain duties or performs other functions conferred or imposed on

assigned to him or her by the President by proclamation In the
Gazette,

33, A Speclel Director shall axerclss the powers, carry out the dutles and
perform the functions conferred or imposed on or assigned to him or
by the President, subject to the directions of the NDPP: provided that
if such powers, dutles and functions Include any of the powers, dutles
and funclions referred to In section 20(1"), they shall exercleed,

carried out and performed In consultation with DPPs of the ares of
Jurlediction concemed.

34, A Spedial Director fmay be appointed for fixed term as /the President
may determine at the time of such appointment, and the President
may from time to time extend such term.
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E: WITHDRAWAL OF THE CHARGES

35, It s submitted that any difference of opinion between prosecutors as
fo whether or not the continued proeecution of an Individua! at any
particular time should continue, s a vaiue Judgment exerclsed by &
apecific prosscuior, whera eugh Prodacuior s axarcising his
discretion on the basis of the evidence bafore him. This Is ilustrated
by difference in oplnion between Ady Breytenbach/Ferreira and Ady.
Mrwebl and other prosscutors who were appointed to handle the
Mdhull metter after Adv. Ferreira was no longer dealing with the
matter,

38. We have also shown to the enquiry that the Issue af the time when
the charges were provislonaily withdrawn, meaning that at any future
date they could be reinstated when all the required evidencs was
avallable, was due to the fact that the documentation that was in the
docket and which the Mrwehl considered necessary was not deemed
sufficlent to continue with the prosecution at that ime. This problem
has still not been resolved, as is epparent from the fact that to date

hereof, no prosecution on these charges against General Mdlull have
yel commenced,

37 Assuchwaconhndthatformaenqulrytoﬂndﬂlatﬂlewlﬂ'admwalof
the charges themaslives to constituis misconduct of a type fo Justify
the enquiry finding that Mrweb! g not fit and proper o continue in his
position as SDPP Is simply not tenable and fegally incorrect, |t
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simply ‘cannot be the situation that avery prosecutor, who s also an
admitted advocate, should they exercise thelr discretion in terms of
the Code of Conduct and Prosscutoris! Guideiines, meke a decision
which other prosecutors do not agres with, that such eonduct wouid

constitute misconduyct Justitying such advocate 1o be no longer fit to
be a prosscutor,

We submit that there has to be evidence to show that the decision
Was unquestionably taken In clrcumastances where they were mala
fide or dishonest actions taken with the dellberate intent of achisving
@ different objective other than that of performing their task as g
prosecutorfadvocate. In the present instance, there Is no suoh
ovidence and as Indlogtad above, Advocste Femelra, who co-
authored the memorandum with Advocate Breytenbmoh, readily
conceded that there was no such evidence and that this Is why no
mention of such ulterior motive was set out In their memorandum of
complsint.

What we further submit must not be lost from sight ls the fact that
four days after the putative consultation on § December 2011, there
was a full blown consultation that took place belween Adv, Mrwebi
Advocate Mzinyathl and Advocate Breylenbach. At such meeting,
Advooats Breytenbach was Opposed to the withdrawing of the
charges and i was eventually agreed, subject to reservations, that
there would be & provisional withdrawal of the charges and that the
investigations into the matter would continue. At such tims, we
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submit, % would have been clear to ell of the relevant parties at the
meating that it was not the end of the prosscution,

THE AGRRZI MATTER

41. At the Zondo Commission in respect of Siate Capture, Mr Agrizzi
gaveevldsnaothatBOSASAhudmhmddocumenhwqmtheNPA
via & Mr Mti, whom had indicated that such documents emanated
from Adv. Jiba, Adv, Mrwebl and a Ms Lepinka. Mr Agrizzi aiso
indicated that Mr Mti had Informed him that these documents were
received upon the payment of, it would appaar, monthly bribes or
unlewful gratifications on the basis of R100 000,00 for Adv. Jiba,
R20 000,00 for Ms Lepinka and R40 000,00 for Adv. Mrwebi,

42, Mr Agrizzi declined to come and give evidence at the enquiry and
therefore could not be cross-examined on the evidence that he
delivered et the Stats Capture Commission. What I apparent,
however, from his evidence is that he is simply giving hearsay
evidence in respect of what Mr Mt! toid him and clearly had no
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personal knowledge of these allegations or purported facts. As
such, it Is submiited that they simply cannot be accepted by thie

enquiry to have any value In the Investigation that the snquiry Is busy
with.

Adv. Mrweb! and Adv. Jiba have both pertinently and directly denled
any such wrongdoing or the receipt of any unlawful gratifications, as
alleged by Mr Agrizzl. In fact, Adv, Mrwebl supplled a substantlal
bundle of documents to the enquiry which not only showed that Mr
Mrwebl had rejected fepresentations from people invoived In the
BOSASA Investigation to be excused from attendance at hearings,
but also on a reguler bas's directed enquiries as to the progress of
the BOSASA Investigation and regularly requested progress reporis,
which included questions as 1o why certaln people had not yet besn
charged and prosecuted., These documents and the evidence of
Adv. Mrwebi clearly Indicate that at no time can it be sald that Adv,

Mrwebl had done anything fo prevent, delay or interfere with the
BOSASA Investigation.

In fact, the evidence of Adv. Mrwebl shows that Ms Lepinka In her
position as an Executive Secretary In the offices of the National
Director of Public Prosecutions had sccess to all of the relevant
documentation and that the prosecutor on the BOSASA case had
requested that Mr Lepinka ba removed from attendance at any of the
BOSASA meetings due to the fagt that she fait uncomfortablie with



Page 40

the fact that Ma Lepinka was present at such meetings. This related
to the previous relationship that Ms Lepinka had with Mr Mt!, In that
ahomamployadbyMthlatﬂaeDepaMofOoMlonal
Servicss, during the vary relavant time of Mr Mt'a purported uniawfu!
activities and uniewful reiationship with BOSASA.

48, Further the documentation presented by Mr Agrizzl appears to end In
August 2013, which s shortly before Ms Lepinka wes removed from

further Involvement In any of the BOSASA meetinge in or about
October 2013.

48. We submit thet there is simply no evidence to support Mr Agrizd's
hearsay statements that Adv. Mrwebi had done anything unlawfu! or
had recelved any unlawful gratification and that such gliegations

shouid simply be lgnored.
CONCLUSION
47, in summary, we submit that nothing has been presentad before the

enquiry which shows that Adv. Mrweb! Is not a fit and proper person
to continue In his position as a Spacial Director and we submit that g
finding In such terms shoukd be made by the Enquiry Panel and that
the recommendation bs made to the President on such basis.
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Counsel for Adv, Mrwebl
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